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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report -

To the Members of Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited 4
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements /7

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information. /

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive income (comprising of
loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. -~

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. Ve

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard. Lo e AR _

Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, Plot No. 56 & 57, Block DN, Sector V, Salt Lake
Kolkata - 700 091, India
T: +91 (33) 44001111 / 44662000

Registered office and Head office: Plot No. 56 & 57, Block DN, Sector-V, Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700 091

Price Waterhouse & Co. {a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity no:
LLPIN AAC-4362) with effect from July 7, 2014. Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, its [GAI registration number is
304026E/E300009 (ICAI registration number before conversion was 304026E)



Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited -~
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. s

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 7

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

7

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

v
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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation. J/

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any signiﬁ(?t deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

10.We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applic,able, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 7

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books. -

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account. '

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act. P

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. s

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A7 s

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us: 7

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2024 under the applicable
law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2024.

e
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

iii.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024. /

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

Note 51(f)(i) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from”borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the

Note 51(f)(ii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any

person(s) of entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of

the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like o/
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(¢) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 7

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software

for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
that has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not notice any instance of audit trail feature being tamper;.d
with.

13. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

7

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304206E/E-300009

Gourab Bardhan

Partner

Membership Number 131310

UDIN: 24131310BKGZWT2539

Gurugram

April 25, 2024
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report 7

Referred to in paragraph 12(f) 4the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel Special
Economic Zone Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tata Steel
Special Economic Zone Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. /'

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act. 7

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 7

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whethe} due
to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure A to Independent éuditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 12(f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel Special
Economic Zone Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

~”

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI. Ve

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304206E/E-300009

Gourab Bardhan

Partner

Membership Number 131310
UDIN: 24131310BKGZWT2539

Gurugram
April 25, 2024
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel Special
Economic Zone Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books
of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we report that:

i. (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ii. (a)

(b)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
’

details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of two years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically

verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticedon ,

such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties {other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 3
and Note 4 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) and intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change,
if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on

(or) are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of

Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of
our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the financial
statements does not arise.

The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any

inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the/

Company.

During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the question of our
commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements are in agreement with the unaudited
books of account of the Company does not arise.

Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, Plot No. 56 & 57, Block DN, Sector V, Salt Lake
Kolkata - 700 091, India
T: +91 (33) 44001111 / 44662000

Registered office and Head office: Plot No. 56 & 57, Block DN, Sector-V, Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700 091
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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel Special
Economic Zone Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

iil. (a) The Company has made investments in eleven mutual fund schemes and granted unsecured loan to
one company. The Company did not grant advance in the nature of loan, stand guarantee, or
provided security to any Company/ firm / Limited Liability Partnership/ other party. The
aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect
to such loan to subsidiaries are as per the table given below: 7

Loans (Rs in lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

- Subsidiaries (Fellow subsidiary) 9,000.00
/
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of the above
case
- Subsidiaries (Fellow subsidiary) 9,000.00 s

Also, refer Note 14 to the financial statements

(b) Inrespect of the aforesaid investments and loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans
were granted/investments were made are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of the loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated, and the repayment of loans (along with payment of interest) are not due in the current
year.

(d) In respect of the loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There were no loans which have fallen due during the year and were renewed/extended. Further,
no fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing overdue loans/advances in nature
of loan.

(f) The loans granted during the year, including to related parties had stipulated the scheduled
repayment of principal and payment of interest and the same were not repayable on demand.

iv. In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and investments made, and guarantees and security
provided by it, as applicable.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred
in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under. %
Vi, The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-

section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services of the Company. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. /

Chartzs
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel Special
Economic Zone Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

vii. (a) In our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Also, refer note 59-to the financial statements
regarding management's assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund. -

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute. Ve

viil.  There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax _
Act, 1961. ’

ix. (a) As the Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year, the
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful _
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not ~
raised funds on short-term basis. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we 7
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

x.(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including Ve
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (@) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come acros
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during tlz
year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

i
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel Special
Economic Zone Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

xi. (b)

xi. (c)

Xii.

xiii.

xiv. (a)

xiv. (b)

xvi. (a)

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12)
of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, the Company has received
whistle-blower complaints during the year, which have been considered by us for any bearing on
our audit and reporting under this clause. As explained by the management, there were certain
complaints in respect of which investigations are ongoing as on the date of our report and our
consideration of the complaints having any bearing on our audit is based on the information
furnished to us by the management. /

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. -

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures”
specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit

'

Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent, the reporting under clausg/”

3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. /

The internal audit of the Company is covered under the group internal audit pursuant to which an
internal audit is carried out every year. In our opinion, the Company’s internal audit system /is
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us. <

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. s

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.

Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group

(as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has seven CICs as

7

-~

7

part of the Group as detailed in note 52 to the financial statements. We have not, howevel(‘{

separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate an

complete.
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel Special
Economic Zone Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Xvil.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding
financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting

XiX.

xxi.

under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. Ve

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by -
the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in
this report.

%

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304206E/E-300009

Gourab
Partner

Bardhan

Membership Number: 131310
UDIN: 24131310BKGZWT2539

Gurugram
April 25, 2024



Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otharwiso

As at As at
Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
() Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 03 1408417 14.967.36
{b) Right-of-use assets 04 17.127.43 17,237.00
(c) Capital work-in-progress 05 10,061.99 8,743.75
(d} Intangible assets 08 333 3n
41,276.92 40,951.22
(&) Financial assels
{i} Lease receivable o7 4,162.80 4,167.19
{ii) Other financial assets 08 6.47 5.69
{f) Income tax asset (Net) 08 131.59 64.05
(g) Other non-current assets 10 - 73.52
Total non-current assets 45,577.78 45,261.67
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 1" 14.63 -
(il Cash and cash equivalents 12 200.55 1,215.68
(i} Lease receivable 13 518.58 503.48
(iv) Loans 14 9,000.00 -
(v) Other financial assets 15 60.90 1.09
(b) Other current assets 16 100.19 231.53
Total current assets 9,894.85 1,951.78
Total assets 55,472.63 47,213.45
(1) Equity and liabilities
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 17 45,988.16 45,9686.16
(b} Other equity 18 (1,391.96) (709.33)
Total equity 44,594.20 45,276.83
(2) Liabilities
(A} Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial abilities
(i} Other financial liabilities 18 358.04 269.30
(b) Provisions 20 77 5.26
(¢} Deferred tax liabilities 39 - -
(d) Cther non-current liabilities 21 391.99 400.63
Total non-current liabilities. 757.20 675.19
{B) Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 22 - 3.36
(i} Trade payables 23
tetal outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 3.79 -
total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 104.42 69.04
(i) Other financial liabilities 24 586.51 1.091.96
(b} Provisions 25 10.53 6.92
{c) Other current liabilities 26 9.415.98 90.15
Total current liabilities 10,121.23 1,261.43
Total liabilities 10,878.43 1,936.62
Total equity and liabilities 5547263 47,213.45
Corporate Information 1
Summary of Material Accounting Palicies 2
The above balance sheet should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes.
This is the balance sheet referred to in aur report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Firm Regi NWGEEGWMQ
Y, oMNN
Gourab Bardhan Manikanta Naik
Partner Managing Director
Membership No.: 131310 DIN: 06634999 e

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 25, 2024

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: April 25, 2024

Manas Bandyopadhyay
Chief Financial Offcer
Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 25, 2024

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 25, 2024

-
o 2

Swati Sheth
Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata
Date: April 25, 2024



Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

For the year ended For the year ended
Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
(a) Revenue from operations 27 1,585.36 2,248.12
(b) Other income 28 363.47 161.27
Total income 1,948.83 2,409.39
Expenses
(a) Costof Sales 29 65.47 652.02
(b) Employee benefits expense 30 196.33 176.63
(c) Finance Costs 31 0.04 1.32
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 1,699.63 1,461.04
(e) Other expenses 33 768.79 635.70
_Total expenses 2,630.26 2,926.71
Loss before taxes (681.43) (517.32)
Income tax expense ¥ -
Loss after tax for the year (681.43) (517.32)
Other comprehensive income
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 36 {1.20) 0.08
Other comprehensive incomel(loss) for the year net of tax {1.20) 0.08
Total comprehensive incomel (loss) for the year (682.63) (517.24)
Earning per equity share (Face value of share of Rs.10 each) 37 -
Basic earning per share ( in Rs.) (0.15) (0.12)
Diluted earning per share ( in Rs.) (0.15) (0.12)
Corporate Information 1
Summary of Material Accounting Policies 2

The above statement of profit & loss should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes.
This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No.304026E/E-300009

Gourab Bardhan
Partner

Membership No.: 131310
Place: Gurugram

Date: April 25, 2024

i

Chanakya Chau
Chairman

DIN: 02139568
Place: Jamshedpur
Date: April 25, 2024

\/

Manas Bandyopadhyay
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 25, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Manikanta Nai
Managing Director
DIN: 06634999 g

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 25, 2024

W
8 Z

Swati Sheth
Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata
Date: April 25, 2024



Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

A} Equity share capital

Particulars Notes Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2022 40,842.44
Changes in equity share capital 5,143.72
Balance as at March 31, 2023 17 45,986.16
Changes in equity share capital -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 45,986.16

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

B) Other equity
Share application Sacuriiiss
Particulras Notes| money pending | Retained earnings caunll Total
allotment * premium
Balance at April 01, 2023 0.00 (2,654.25) 1,944.92 (709.33)
Loss for the year - (681.43) - (681.43)
Other comprehensive income - (1.20) - (1.20)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 0.00 (3,336.88) 1,944.92 (1,391.96)
18
Balance at April 01, 2022 0.00 (2,137.01) 288.64 (1,848.37)
Loss for the year - {517.32) - (517.32)
Other comprehensive income - 0.08 - 0.08
Issue of shares - - 1,656.28 1,656.28
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.00 (2,654.25) 1,944.92 (709.33)
* Below rounding off norm
The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Firm Registration No.304026E/E-300009
Gourab Bardhan akya ChaudHary Manikanta Naik
Partner Chairman Managing Director PRSI
Membership No.: 131310 DIN: 02139568 DIN: 06634999

Place: Gurugram
Date; April 25, 2024

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: April 25, 2024

Pl

Manas Bandyopadhyay
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 25, 2024

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 25, 2024

o

Swati Sheth
Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata
Date: April 25, 2024



Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Loss before tax for the year (681.43) (517.32)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 1,599.63 1,461.04
Net gain on sale of investments (258.54) (91.97)
Interest on Loan (66.45) i
Finance costs 0.04 1.32
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost (27.45) (43.98)
Interest on lease receivable (503.96) {501.78)
Profit/(loss) on sale/ discard of property, plant and equipment - 0.84
Operating profit before working capital changes 61.84 308.15
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/decrease in non-current/ current financial and other assets 609.17 553.08
Increase/ (decrease) in non-current/ current financial and other liabilities/ 9,516.95 (659.92)
Cash generated from operations 10,187.96 201.31
Income taxes paid ~ (67.54) _An ?5
Net cash inflow from operatmg activities 10 120.42 219.06
B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Payment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment, capital work in (2,424.80) (2,254.63)
progress, intangible assets and right-of-use assets
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment - 0.07
Inter-corporate loan given (9,000.00) -
Proceeds from maturity of Fixed Deposit - 764.00
Interest received on loan 6.64 -
Interest on fixed deposits/ sweep account 27.45 45.94
__Purchase of units of mutual funds o (9,500.01) B (15,550.00)
Proceeds form sale of units of mutual funds i 875857 . Tspa1e7
Net cash outflow from investing activities (11,132.15) o (1,352.65)
C. Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of Equity Share Capital - 6,800.00
__Repayment of long-term borrowings S— . o (7,582.68)
Principal element of lease payments ) o {25:1] . .“(.@)
~Interest paid on lease liabilities B {0.46) (1.76)
‘Net cash outflow from financing activities (340)  (803.10)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1,015.13) (1,936.69)
Cash and cash equwalents at the begmmng of the fmancial year {refer No:e 12:1 1 215 68 3 152.37
Cash and cash equivalents at tha end of the fmanc:al year (refer Note 12) 200 55 1 215.68

Reconcilaition of cash and cash euivalents as per the statement of cash flows
Cash and Cash equivalents as per above comprises the following

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents (as per note 12)

200.55

1,215.68

Balance as per statement of cash flows

200.55

1,215.68

The above statement of cash flows have been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjuction with the accompyning notes.

This is the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Regi ion No.304026E/E-300009

ou/r1oA

Gourab Bardhan
Partner

Membership No.: 131310
Place: Gurugram

Date: April 25, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

anakya Chaudhary
Chairman
DIN: 02139568
Place: Jamshedpur
Date: April 25, 2024

Manas Bandfopadhyay
Chief FinancialOfficer
Place: Bhubangswar
Date: April 25, 2024

Manikanta Nai
Managing Director
DIN: 06634999
Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: April 25, 2024

éaﬁ Sheth
Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata
Date: April 25, 2024



Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

1) Corporate Information
Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited ("the Company”} is a public limited company incorporated in India with its registered office in Bhubaneswar, Odisha.

The Company, a 100% subsidiary of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited, is in the process of developing an Industrial Park at Gopalpur, in Ganjam District of
Odisha. Tala Steel Limited is the ulimate holding company of the company.

2) Material A g Polici

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the presentation of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated,

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i} Compliance with ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) [Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act,

(i) Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

(iii) Current versus Non-current Classification

The company presents assels and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

{A) An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,

b) held primarily for the purpose of irading,

c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting periad, or

d) cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All ather assets are classified as non-current.

(B) A liability is classified as current when:

ajitis expected to be settied in the normal operating cycle,

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting peried, or

dj there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as Non-current,

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle for determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

(iv) New and jed jards adopted by the Comp

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated Mard'- 31, 2023 notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which amended certain
accounting standards (see below), and are effective April 1, 2023:

- Disclosure of accounting policies - amendments to Ind AS 1

- Definition of accounting estimates - amendments to Ind AS 8

- Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction - amendments to Ind AS 12

The other amendments te Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments did net have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior pericds and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods. Specifically,
no changes would be necessary as a conseq e of d made to Ind AS 12 as the Company’s accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment,

(v) Rounding off amounts

All amounts disciosed in the Financial Statements and notes have been rounded off to nearest lakhs (Rs 00,000} as per the requirements of Schedule 11l to the Act, unless otherwise
stated.

2.2 Critical and Judg
The preparation of financial s in conformity with Ind AS reg manag 1t to make judh ts, esti and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial its and the reported amounts of

revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
Revisions o accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

This note provides an overview of the areas that invelved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be ially adjusted due to esti
and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.

The areas involving critical esti or ji are:

(a) Impairment - Note 2.4

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows after considering current ecenemic conditions and trends, esimated future
operating results and growth rates and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are
disceunted using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

{h] Estimation of Expected Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment — Notes 2.3 and 3

its estimate of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each reporiing date, based on the expected utility of the assets, Uncertainties in these
esnrnates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of property, plant and equipment,

{c) Expected Credit Losses - Note 2.13 and 14

To measure the expected credit losses, loan given o the party has been assessed for recoverability. The expected loss rates are based on the credit profile, business growth ate.
and the comesponding historical credit losses experienced. The historical loss rates are adjusted to refiect current and forward- }ouklng |nfcrmanon on macreeconamic factors
affecting the ability of the party to settle the receivables, The assumptions and estimates applied for ining the loss all are d peri




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

2.3 Property, Plant and Equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation, Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate assel is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance ara charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they occurred.

thad

Depr 3 d useful lives and residual value :

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allecate their cost, net of thair residual values, over their estimated useful lives.

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's experts which are same as those specified by Schedule Il to the Companies Act
2013 or determined basis technical evaluation done by the management to refiect actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not mare than 5% of the original cost of the
assets,

The estimated useful lives for the categories of property, plant and equipment are:

Particulars Esti 1 useful life
Buildings and other structures 3 to 30 years
Roads 3o 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 51to 10 years
Office Equipment 3to 10 years
Vehicles 5 years
Electrical | ion and Equipment 10 years
Laboratory Equipment 10 years

Plant & Machinery 30 to 35 years

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An assel's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

2.4 Impairment of Assets

Assets are lested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assels or group of assets (cash-generating units).

2.5 Leases

As aLessee

The Company has taken on lease land from government. Rental contract is for a fixed period of ninety years. Contract contains lease components. Lease terms and conditions have
been negotiated at inception. The lease payments are generally discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. In the current case, the entire lease payments have been paid
at inception.The Company is not exposed to any potential fulure increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate,

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: -

{a) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability.

{b) Any lease payment made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentive received.
{c) Any initial direct cost and

(d) Restoration costs,

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful ife and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less, without a purchase option,

As a Lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the company is a lesser is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in relation to an
operating lease are added 1o the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheel based on their nature.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods 50 as to reflect a constant pericdic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

2.6 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of p ion in the S of Cash Flows , cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held with banks / financial institutions with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value.

2.7 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or praduction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in cennection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.8 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount can be reliably measured, and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria have been
met for each of the company's activities as described below. The company bases its estimates on histarical results, taking into consideration the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangement.

(a) Revenue
Rental income is recognised on a straight-ine basis over the term of the relevant leases as per Ind AS 116,

The company recognises income from operation & maintenance, water charges efc as per Ind AS 115 on the basis of contracts. Revenue is recognised in the accounting period
when services are rendered. Revenue s recognised over time as and when the customer receives the benefit of the Company's performance based on the actual service provided to
as proportion of the total services to be provided. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and related taxes. These taxes are regarded as
collected on behalf of the authorities. Mo element of financing is deemed present as services are rendered with a credit term, The Company does not have any contract where the
year between the transfer of promised services to the cu and | by the « 5 ds one year. As a consequence, the Company is not required to adjust any of
the transaction prices for time value of money.




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

(b) Other Income
Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of iIncome can be measured reliably,
Interest Income is included under Other Income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.9 Foreign Currency i and t lati

(a)F ional and P Currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates {‘the functional
currency’). The financial statements are presented in indian Rupee (Rupses or Rs.), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the year-end, monetary assets and liabilties.
denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the year-end exchange rates. The exchange differences arising from settiement of foreign currency transactions and from the year-
end restatement are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are tr d using the hange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

2.10 Employee benefits

(a) Short-term Employee Benefit:

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are exp to be settled wholly within 12 manths after the end of the period In which the emplayees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

(b) Other Long-Term Employee Benefit Obligati

Long-term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation, as per projected unil credit method, done at the end of each financial year, Accumulated leave,
which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as short-lerm employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused I that has lated at the reporting date. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Post-employment oblig
Defined Benefit Plans

The liability recagnised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to markst yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost Is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in ‘Employee
Benefits E "in the 1t of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they accur, directly n other
comprehensive income. These are included in 'Retained Earnings’ in the Statement of Changes in Equity,

Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions under defined contricution plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognised as expenses for the peried in which the employee has rendered the
service,

2.11 Provisi and Conting ies

A pravision is recognized when Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outfiow of resources embaodying ecenomic benefit will be
required to settle the cbligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on best estimale of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the Balance Sheet date, These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the
notes farming part of the Financial Statements.

212 Income taxes
The income tax expense or credit for the peried is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each urisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting peried. Mar periodi |
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes pravisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax autherities,

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements, Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting peried and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized, or the deferred income 1ax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses anly if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those
temporary differences and losses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2131 and other fi ial assets

I. Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
- Those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company's busi model for ging the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of profit and loss or other comprehensive income. For ir s in debt ir ,this
will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For ir in equity ir its, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irevocable election

atthe time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

ii. Recognition
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the company commits to purchase or sell the financial asset.

iii. Measurement
At initial recognition, the
directly attributable to t
loss.




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

a. Debt Instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's busi model for ging the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assel. There are three
measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

- Amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where the cash flows represents solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortized cost and Is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised or impaired.

- Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {FYOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, if any, which are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously ised in OCl is rec ified from equity to the statement of profit and loss and recognised in Other Income/Other Expenses.

- Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amertized cost or FVOC! are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within 'Other
Income’'Other Expenses’ in the period in which it arises.

b. Equity Instruments
The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company's management has elected lo present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in ‘Other Income/Other Expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses
{and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

iv. Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with ils assets carried at amortized cost and FVOC! debt instruments, if any. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Far trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109- “Financial Instruments”, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised at
the time of initial recognition of the receivables.

v. De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when:

- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets, or
- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipient.

Where the company has i | an asset, it eval whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

\Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if it
has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the company retains control of the financial asset, the asset continues to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement
in the financial asset.

vi. Income recognition

Interest Income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial assel. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension. call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses.

2.14 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided 1o the compary prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate methed.

2.15 Offsetting fi ial instr
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reparted in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable rights must not be contingent an future events and must be

enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.16 Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of new shares or optiens 2re shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(a) Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

a) The profit attributable te owners of the Company

b} by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the detarmination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

~ The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

— The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

04 - Right-of-use assets

Carrying amounts of:

As at
March 31, 2024

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

As at

March 31, 2023

Leasehold land 17,127.43 17,233.85

Office building - 3.15

Total 17,127.43 17,237.00
As at March 31, 2024 Leasehold land Office building Total
"Opening gross carrying amount S 18,334.84 29.91 18,364.75
Additions 165.16 - 165.16
Disposals - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 18,500.00 29.91 18,529.91
Opening accumulated depreciation o 1,100.99 26.76 1,127.75
Charge for the year 271.58 315 274.73
Disposals - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation 1,372.57 29.91 1,402.48
Net carrying amount - opening period 17,233.85 3.15 17,237.00
Net carrying amount - closing period 17,127.43 - 17,127.43
As at March 31, 2023 Leasehold land Office building Total
Opening gross carrying amount 18,334.84 134.39 18,469.23
Additions - - -
Disposals - (104.48) (104.48)
Closing gross carrying amount 18,334.84 29.91 18,364.75
Opening accumulated depreciation 831.36 112.35 943.71
Charge for the year 269.63 18.89 288.52
Disposals - (104.48) (104.48)
Closing accumulated depreciation 1,100.99 26.76 1,127.75
Net carrying amount - opening period 17,503.48 22.04 17,525.52
Net carrying amount - closing period 17,233.85 3.15 17,237.00

Note:

(i) Refer note 34 for disclosure with respect to leases as per Ind AS 116.




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

05- Capital work-in-Progress As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Capital work-in-progress 10,061.99 8,743.75
10,061.99 8,743.75
Ageing for Capital-work-in progress (CWIP) as at March 31, 2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Capital-work-in progress Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
year
Projects in progress 1,787.06 1,623.22 1,193.89 5,457.82 10,061.99
Total 1,787.06 1,623.22 1,193.89 5,457.82 10,061.99
Ageing for Capital-work-in progress (CWIP) as at March 31, 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Capital-work-in progress Total
Les:;:ran ’ 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 2,179.37 825.63 990.85 4,747.90 8,743.75
Total 2,179.37 825.63 990.85 4,747.90 8,743.75
Note:

1) There are no items in capital work-in-progress as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 whose completion is overdue or has exceeded

its cost compared to its original plan.




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited

Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

06 - Intangible assets

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

As at March 31, 2024 Website Software Company Total
Development Costs Logo
Costs
Opening gross carrying amount 11.69 12.32 4.02 28.03
Additions - 2.00 - 2.00
Closing gross carrying amount . 11.69 14.32 402 30.03
Opening accumulated amortisation 11.69 9.21 402 24 .92
Amortisation charge for the year i - 1.78 - 1.78
Closing acoumulated amortisation 1169 1099 402 2670
Net carrying amount - opening period - 3.1 . 341
Net carrying amount - closing period : 333 - 3.33
As at March 31, 2023 Website Software Company Total
Development Costs Logo
Costs

Opening gross carrying amount 11.69 12.32 4.02 28.03
Additions . . - -
Closing gross carrying amount 11.69 12.32 4.02 28.03
Opening accumulated amortisation 7.62 7.00 4.02 18.64
Amortisation charge for the year 4.07 2.21 - 6.28
Closing accumulated amortisation 11.69 9.21 4.02 24.92
Net carrying amount - opening period 4.07 5.32 - 9.39
Net carrying amount - closing period - 3.11 - 3.1




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

07 - Lease receivable - Non Current

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated othorwise

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Lease receivabl 4,162.80 4,167.19
4,162.80 4,167.19
08 - Other financial assets - Non Current As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Security deposits .47 5.68
6.47 5.69
09 - Income tax asset (Net) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advance tax 131.59 84.05
131.59 64.05
10 - Other non-current assets As at As at

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Capital advances

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

73.52

73.52

11 - Trade Receivables

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Considered good - Secured

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Considered good - Unsecured 14.63 -
Having significant increase in credit risk = &
Credit impaired & 5
Total 14.63 -
Less: Loss allowance - =

14.63 -

Trade Receivables ageing as at March 31, 2024

Caonsidered good - Secured

March 31, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled | Not due | Less than | 6 months -1 1-2 years 2 More than 3 Total
[ th year 3ysars years
Undisputed Trade Receivabl
Considered good - 14.63 - - = - 14.63
Having significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Credit Impaired - - - - - - .
Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - - -
Consigered good - - - - - - -
Having signi increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Credit Impaired - - - - - = =
Total - 14.63 - - - - 14.63
Motes:
1) There are no outstanding receivables due from directors or other officers of the Cempany.
2) Refer note 38 for trade receivables due from related parties.
3) The balance of Trade Receivables as on March 31, 2023 is Nil, hence no aging schedule has been disclosed.
12 - Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance with bank
In current account 4.70 9.22
Deposits with original maturity of less than three manths 195.85 1,206.46
200.55 1,215.68
13 - Lease receivable - Current As at As at
e - s March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, éoqsideret_l good unless otherwise stated ~
Lease ivabl 518.58 503.48
518.58 503.48
14 - Loans - Current As at As at

March 31, 2023

9,000.00

Caonsidered good - Unsecured -
Having significant increase in credit risk x -
Credit impaired ' -
Total 9,000.00 -
Less: Loss allowance - -

9,000.00 -

Notes:

1} Loan given in current year to Tata Steel Downstream Products Ltd. (fellow subsidiary) for 179 days and 178 days at rate of interest 8.17% and 8.28% respectively (March 31, 2023:
Nil) for warking capital purposes. Alsa refer note 38 for disclosures on related parties.

2) The Company has not granted any loans to its promoters, directors, key management persannel and related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) which are repayable on

demand or without specifying any terms or periods of repayments.

The details of loans given to related parties are as below:

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Type of Borrower Amount
. " P 1 10 the Percentage to the!
L total loans and Amount total loans and
advances in the outstanding advances in the
nature of loans nature of loans
Fallow subsidiary 9,000.00 100% v a




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 21, 2024

Amount in INR Lakhs, unloss stated otharwise

15 - Other financial assets - Current As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Interest accrued on loan 59.81 -
Security 1.09 1.09
60.90 1.09
16 - Other current assets As at As at
) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Balance with government authorities 49.41 218.70
Other advances * 50.78 12.83
100.19 231.53
* Other advance majorly advance for elc.
17 - Equity share capital
Number of Shares
{in lakhs) g
Authorised equity share capital (Par value of Rs 10/- each) :
As at April 01, 2022 5,500.00 55,000.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 5,500.00 55,000.00
Increase during the year - 2
As at March 31, 2024 5,500.00 55,000.00
Authorised preference share capital (Par value of Rs 10/- each) :
As at April 01, 2022 2,000.00 20,000.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 2,000.00 20,000.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 2,000.00 20,000.00
(i) Movements in equity share capital:
As at April 01, 2022 4,084.24 40,842 44
Changes during the year 514.37 5,143.72
As at March 31, 2023 4,598.61 45,986.16
Changes during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 4,598.61 45,986.16

Term and rights attached to aquity shar

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- (March 31, 2023: Rs. 10/-) per share. Each halder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders In the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enfitled o receive remaining assets of the © after distribution of all pref ial amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

e As at As at
(i} Shares of the company held by holding company March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tata Steel Ulilities and Infrastructure Services Ltd 4,598.61 4,588.61

4,598.61 4,598.61
(iii} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Number of Number of
P I
Arellers shares % holding shares % holding
{in lakhs) (in lakhs}
Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Ltd and its nominees 4,598.61 100% 4,598.61 100%
(iv) Details of shareholding of promoters:
As at March 31,2024
Name of the promoter Number of shares % of total % of change
(in lakhs) number of shares| during the year
Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Ltd 4,598.61 100% 0%
Mr. Deepak Kamath* 0.00 0% 0%
Nr. Pranay Sinha* 0.00 0% 0%
Mr. F Rai* 0.00 0% 0%
Mr. Rabingra K Singh* 0.00 0% 0%
Mr. Sanjay Kumar* 0.00 0% 0%
Mr. Pramod Kumar Singh Rathaore® 0.00 0% 0%
Total 4,598.61 100%
As at March 31, 2023
Name of the promoter Number of shares % of total % of change
(in lakhs) ber of st during the year
Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Senvices Ltd 4,598 61 100% 0%
Mr. Deepak Kamath* 0.00 0% 0%
Mr. Pranay Sinha* 0.00 0% 0%
Mr. R. dhar Rai* 0.00 0% 0%
Mr, Rabindra K Singh* 0.00 0% %
Mr. Sanjay Kumar® 0.00 0% %
NMr, Pramod Kumar Singh Rathore* 0.00 0% %
Total 4,598.61 100%

* The above mentioned persons are nominee shareholders on behalf of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastruciure Services Lid.
promoters as defined under section 2(69) of Companies Act, 2013.

Promoters' for the purpose of this disclosure mea




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

18 - Other equity

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

(i} Retained earnings

Cpening balance (2.654.25) {2,137.01)
Net Profit { {loss) for the year ) (681.43) (517.32)
Items of other comprehensive income recagnised directly in retained earmings
- R ement of post-employ benefit obli 1, net of tax (1.20) 0.08
Closing bal (3,336.88) (2,654.25)
{il) Securities premium
Opening balance 1,944.92 288.64
Received on issue of shares during the year - 1,656.28
Closing bal 1,944.92 1,944.92
(iii) Share monay ding all >
Opening balance 0.00 0.00
Received on issue of shares during the year - 6,800.00
0.00 6,800.00
Less: Share aliotted £ 5,143.72
Less: Securities p - 1,656.28
Closing bal 0.00 0.00
* Below rounding off norm
(1,391.96) (709.33)
Mature and purpose of other reserves
Securitles Premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accord with the p of the Act.
19 - Other financial liabilities - Non Current As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Retention Money 71.00 -
Security deposits 287.04 269.30
358.04 269.30
20 - Provisions - Non Current As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 36) 717 5.26
747 5.26
As at As at

21 - Other non-current Liabilities

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Prepaid rent - land sublease 391.99 400.63
391.99 400.63
22 - Lease liabilities - Current As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Lease liability (Refer note 34) - 3.36
- 3.36
As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

23 - Trade payables

Dues of micro and smail P 3.79 -
Dues other than micro and small enterprises 104.42 69.04
108.21 69.04
Notes:
1) Refer note 38 for trade payables dues to refated parties.
Information relating to Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs):
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Principal amount due to | gi under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 379 -
Interest due 1o suppliers registered under the MSIMED Act and ing unpaid as at year end - -
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the ted day during the year 5.62 -

Interest paid, cther than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

Interest and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
seclion 23 of the MSMED Act.

Trade payables ageing as at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not Due re— e - More than 3 Total
year iz s years

Undisg trade payabl

Micro elnlerpnses and small 3.79 - - - . i 370

Others 67.43 33.35 3.64 - - E 104 .42
Disputed trade payables

Micro enterprises and small = - 5 -

enterprises - - -

Others . = . # a GO arlerq s
Total 33.35 3.64 - 108.21

S e AAr ae—a A
\'Lrnlc- oo "402 (A




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

Trade payables ageing as at March 31, 2023
0 for g periods from due date of pay
P lar: nbill u Total
articulars u ed Not Due Lel::::rl 1 1-2years 2-3years MD;:;:::“ 3 otal
Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small j . i ]
Others 30.61 36.08 2.35 - - - 69.04
Disputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small = 4 i . ; _
Otners 2 - * - * = =
Total 30.51 36.08 2.35 - - - 69.04
24 - Other financial liabilities - Current As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employee related liabilities 41.31 26.89
Security deposits 2.12 2.12
Payable for purchase of propeny, plant and equip 543.08 1,062.95
586.51 1,091.96
25 - Provisions - Current As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for employ fi
Gratuity (Refer note 36) 1.54 0.04
Comy absences 8.99 6.88
10.53 6.92
26 - Other current liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Statutory dues 16.40 20.70
Advance received from customers 9,390.83 60.80
Frepaid rent - land subl 8.65 8.65
9,415.98 90.15




Tata Steel Special Economic Zone Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

27 - Revenue from operations

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

~_Revenue from contract with customers

Sale of services

~-Income from lease rent and other services 1,081.40 1,746.34
_____ Otheroperatingrevenue . 503.96 501.78
1,585.36 2,248.12

Revenue from operation includes revenue from contract with customers under Ind AS 115 amounting to Rs. 462.71

lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,170.69 lakhs).

28 - Other income

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

- Net gain on saié*of_ investments - 258.54 91.97
___Interest on loan 66.45 =
_____Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost 27.45 43.98
___Interest on income tax refund B 2.58 4.50
Other miscellaneous income - 8.45 20.82
363.47 161.27

29 - Cost of Sales

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

~ Cost of Sales - 65.47 652.02
- ' 65.47 652.02
30 - Employee benefits expense For the year ended For the year ended
L . March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
wwméma!ary. wages and bonus - 170.48 160.88
Contribution to provident fund (Refer Note 36) 79 8.26
Gratuity (Refer Note 36) ) 2.21 2.18
 Staff welfare expenses o 15.85 5.31

B 196.33 176.63
31 - Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

" Interest on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit . 643.70

or loss

___Interest on lease liabilities L 0.04 1.32
Less: Amount capitalised (see note below) . (643.70)

0.04 1.32

Note: The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the actual interest rate

applicable to the entity's borrowings during the year, in this case Nil (March 31, 2023: 10.58%).

32 - Depreciation and amortisation expense For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3) 1,323.12 1,166.24
_____Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 1.78 6.28
Depreéiéii'bﬁub_f right-of-use assets (Refer Note 4) ____ _ _ 274.73 288.52
1,599.63 1,461.04
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33 - Other expenses

For the year ended

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

For the year ended

_ il March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
~ Repair & Maintenance -

~ -Building ' 15.67 -
~ -Others e 20.26 4.00
Telecommugl_ggt_lg_l_'l_expehs_eg o 2.60 0.68
Office Rent I e e AL 16.23 -
 Rates & taxes e 128.55 133.75
) Legal & professmnal fees - 14.88 17.61
Travelling and conveyances o 17.68 19.52
Outsourcing expenses - 327.69 321.34
__Marketing expenses 1261 21.50
~ Loss on sale/ discard of properly p!ant and equtpment (Net} - 0.84
_Secunty Services 33.16 2462

~ Auditors remuneration - _______
~ -AsAuditFees o - 147 0.91
- Others (Group Reporting) 0.33 .
= Out of Pocket Expenses ~ 0.37 1.09
~ Miscellaneous expenses - 176.59 89.84
768.79 635.70
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34. Disclosure of Right-of-use assets (ROU) and Lease liability as per Ind AS 116

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

A ised in Bal Sheet As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Right of Use assets

Leasehold Land 17,127.43 17,233.85
Office Building - 3.15
Total 17,127.43 17,237.00
Lease liabilities As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Current - 3.36
MNan-current - -
Total - 3.36
A ised in the stat t of profit and loss As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Interest on lease liabilities 0.04 1.32
Depreciation charge for the year 274.73 288.52
Expenses relating 1o short-term leases (included in other expenses) 16.23 -
Total 291.00 289.84
Total cash cutflow for leases for the year 3.40 20.42

The following tabie sets out a ity lysis of lease |

¥ showing the undiscounted lease payments after the reponing period.

Maturity analysis of lease

As at March 31, 2024

Less then one year

As at March 31, 2023

3.40

One to two years

Total undi

d lease f

3.40

35. Contingent Liability and Commitments:

(@) There is no contingent liability as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 which are required o be disclosed in the financial statements,

b)C

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts and not provided for (net of advances)

4.568,14

1.869.45

36. Employee Benefits:

i) Defined Contribution Obligation:

The Company maintains a provident fund with Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Contributions are made to provident fund for emplayees at the rate of 12% of basic
salary as per regulation. The obligation of the company is limited to the amount confributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expenses

recognised during the period towards defined contnbution plan is Rs. 7.79 lakhs (March 31, 2023; Rs. 8.26 lakhs)

ii) Defined Benefit Obligation:

The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees whe are in continuous service for a period of more than 4 years and &
manths are eligible to get gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for

15 days multiplied with number of years of completed services. The gratuity plan is unfunded plan.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefil obligation over the year are as follows:

Gratuity Benefit:

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

Changes in Present Value of Obligation

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Present value of obligation - Opening

5.30 5.15
Current Service Cost 1.84 1.88
Interest Cost 0.37 0.30
Actuarial gain / loss on ions due to change in financial and ic assumptions. 0.32 .07
Actuanal gain / loss on obligations due to unexpected experience 0.88 {0.15)
Benefits paid / unsettied lability - {1.85)
Present value of obligation - Closing 8.71 5.30

Table showing Reconcilation to Balance Sheet:

Reconciliation to Balance Sheet

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Fund Liability- Current

1.54

0.04

Fund Liability- Non Current

717

5.26

Table Showing Plan Assumptions:

Plan assumptions

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Discount Rate

5.98% 7.27%
Rate of Compensation Increase (Salary Inflation) 6.00% 6.00%
Average expected fulure service {Remaining working Life) 21 23
Average Duration of Liabilities 21 23
hartality Table IlAM 2012-2015 Ultimate]  TALM 2012-2014 Ulimate|
S nuation at age 60 80|
Early Reti & Di {All Causes Combined) 1.00%]| 1.00%|
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Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

Table showing Expense Recognised in statement of Profit and Loss:

Exp recog in of Profit and Loss As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Current Service Cost 1.84 1.88
Interest Cost 0.37 0.30
Benefit Cost{Exp R ized in of Profit and loss) 221 2.18

Table showing amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:

Other Comprehensive Income As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Actuarial gain / loss on obligations due to change in financial and demographic ions 0.32 0.07
Actuanal gainfloss on obligations due to Ur d Experience 0.88 (0.15)
I for the year gnised in Other Compr ive | 1.20 (0.08})
A i itivity lysis of impact on defined benefit obligations for significant assumption on the gratuity plan is as shown below:
Sensitivity Analysis As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Increase Decrease Increase D
Discount Rate (-/+ 1%) 8.03 9.47 4.86 5,78
Salary Growth (+/- 1%) 9.46 8.02 5.78 4.85

The abave sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of
the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to signi actuarial assumpti the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied while calculating the defined benefit liability
recognised in the balance sheel

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the itivity lysis did not change compared to the prior period.

Risk Exposure

Interest rate volatility: - The gratuity liability is calculated using discount rate set with ref to Go ities yield. If there is any change in yield of Government
securities, the provision may change accordingly.
Life expectancy:- The gratuity plan obligation is to provide benefits for the life of the ber, so in life exp y will result in an increase in the plan’s liabilities.

This is particularly significant where inflationary increases result in higher itivity to changes in life

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations is 21 years (March 31, 2023; 23 years).
iii) Leave Benefits:
The Company provides for accumulation of leave by its employees. The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised leave balances and utilise it in future periods or

receive cash in lieu thereof as per the Company’s policy. The Company records a provision for leave benefits in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increases this entittement, This is an unfunded plan,

The total provision recorded by the Company towards these benefits as at year end was Rs. 8.99 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. 6.88 lakhs).

37. Computation of Earnings Per Share (EPS):

[Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Profit/ {Loss) for the year (A) (681.43) {517.32)]
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 4.598.61 4,084 24
Number of equity shares at the end of the year 4.508.61 4.598.61
Weighted average number of shares considered for ian of Basic and Diluted EPS (Numbers) (B) 4.588.61 4,147.00
Face Value of Each Equity Share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Basic and Diluted earning per share { in Rs.) (A/B) {0.15) 10.12)

38. Related Parties Tr

Related party disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 24 prescribed under the act.
i) List of Related Parties and Relationship

[Name of the Related Parties Descri of hip
Tata Steel Limited Ultimate holding «
Tala Steel Ulilities and Infrastructure Services Limited Immediate holding y
Tata Steel Downstream Products Limited Fellow subsidiary
Prasanta Maliick (Managing Director upto April 30, 2023) Key ial person
Manikanta Naik (Managing Director w.e.f May 03, 2023) Key gerial person
i) Details of Related Party T i and bal dil
Transactions Tata Steel Limited
(Ultimate holding company)
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Inter-corporate deposit repaid - (7.582 68)
Income from lease rent and other services 822.90 553.48
Qutsourcing expenses 346.86 322,52
Legal and professional fees 5.04 2.89
Office Rent 24.10 -
Miscellaneous expenses 2.51 -
Interast onb ings - 643.70
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Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

Balances outstanding as at the year end

Tata Steel Limited
(Ultimate holding )

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Share application money pending allotment * 0.00 0.00
Trade payables - Current 33.21 27.63
Trade receivables - Current 8.00 -

* Below rounding off norm

Transactions

Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Ltd

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Subscription for new equity shares (including securities premium)

6,800.00

Transactions

Tata Steel Downstream Products Ltd
(Fellow subsidiary)

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Inter-corporate loan given

9.000.00

Interest on loan

66.45

Balances receivable as at the year end

Tata Steel Downstream Products Ltd
(Fellow subsidiary)

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Inter-corporate lean (including interest accrued)

9,059.81

Loans to related parties

Tata Steel Downstream Products Ltd

(Fellow

y)

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Beginning of the year - -
Loans advanced 9,000.00 #
Interest charged 66,45 *
Interest received (6.64)

End of the year 9,059.81 -
There is no loss allowance for receivables in relation to any outstanding balances, and no loss allowance has been recognised during the year in respect of receivables from
related parties.

Notes:

i] All cutstanding balances are unsecured and considered good, payable in cash

il) Transaction amount includes GST

iii} All transactions were made cn normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates applying the principles of amm's length pricing.

iv) The to key
Company as a whaole.

gerial personnel does net include provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the

v) Qutsourcing exp includes deputation cost of Mr. Prasanta Mallick, Managing Director (up to April 30, 2023) amounting to Rs. 12.95 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs, 167.34
lakhs) and Mr. Manikanta Naik, Managing Director {w.e.f May 3, 2023) ameunting to Rs. 166.74 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. Nil lakhs).

39. Deferred Tax:

The deferred tax liability is primarily in respect of property, plant and equipment. As the company is in the initial phase of setting up the industrial park, the company has
recognised deferred tax assel on unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses to the extent of deferred tax liability, resulting in net deferred tax liability of Rs. Nil

(March 31, 2023: Rs. Mil},

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 Charge/Credit As at March 31, 2024
Deferred tax liability on property, plant and equipment 268.33 329.43 597.76
Deferred tax asset on carried forward of tax losses 268.33 329.43 597.76
Net - - o
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 Charge/Credit As at March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liability on property, plant and equipment 169.72 98.61 268.33
Deferred tax asset on carried forward of tax losses 169.72 98.61 268.33
Net - - =
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Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

40, Fair value measurement
Financial instrument by categaory

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Financial assets Amortised cost Amortised cost)
Secunty Deposits 7.56 6.78
Trade receivables 14.63 -
Cash and cash equivalents 200.55 1,215.68
Other financial assets 59.81 -
Loans 9.000.00 =
Lease receivables [current and non-current) 4,681.38 4,670.67
Total financial assets 13,963.93 5,893.13

Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities B44.55 1,361.25
Trade payables 108.21 69.04
Lease liabilites - 3.36
Total financial liabilities 1,052.76 1,423.85
The fair value of these assets and liabilities is not signifi y diffi t from their carrying values.

41, Financial risk management
The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise of fi ial assets and fi liabilities. The Company's principal ial liabilities cc ises of trade bles and

ofther liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations, The Company’s principal financial assets include trade receivables, loans
and security deposits that are derived directly from its operations.

Risk exposures and responses

The Company manages its exposure o key financial risks in accordance with the direction of board of directars. The main risks that could adversely affect the Company's
financial assets, liabilities or future cash flows are market risk {interest rate risk & foreign currency risk), liguidity risk and credit risk. Management reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks which are summarized below.

(a) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises of interest rate
nsk and foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not
directly exposed to the risk of changes in market interest rates because it does not have any borrowings nor does it have any variable rate fi ial assets/ liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company underakes

transactions denominated in foreign currencies due to which exposures to exchange rate fluctustions anse. P ly, the exp to foreign currency risk is not significant.
(b) Liguidity risk

Liquigity risk is defined as the nisk that the Company will not be able (o seitle or meet its abligations at a le price. The Company's Board of Directors are respansible
for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are by senior g 1 manitors

the Company's net liquidity position through ralling farecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The Company's abjective is to maintain a balance bet continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of cash credits, bank loans among others.

The tables below lyse the Company's fi ial liabilities into rel turity groupings based on their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is nat significant.

Particulars Carrying Amount Contractual Cash Between 0 to 1 Year Batween 1 to 3 Years More than 3 years
flows

As at March 31, 2024
2) Lease Liabilities - - - = %

b) Trade payables 108.21 108.21 108.21 - -
c) Other financial liabilities 944.55 945.55 587.52 B83.09 274.94

As at March 31, 2023

a) Lease Liabilities 3.26 3.36 3.36 - -

b) Trade payables 69.04 69,04 69.04 - -

¢} Other financial liabilities 1,361.26 1,361.26 1,091.96 - 269.30
(c) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from the counter party failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms and obligati Fi ial instn that

are subjected to concentration of credit risk principally censists of trade receivables, loans and other financial assets. None of the financial instruments of the Company resulls
in the material concentration of it risk.
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42. Capital Management
{a) Risk Management

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

The Company's capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the achievement of long-term and short-term goals of the Company.
The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with long-term and shon term gic |

The funding needs are met through equity and cash generated from operations.

The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of net dabt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company.
Net debt includes interest bearing bomowings less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and current investments.

The table below summarises the capital, net debt and net debt to equity ratio of the Company.

and exp plans,

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Equity share capital 45,986.16 45,986.16
Other equity (1,391.96) (709.33)
Total equity (A} 44,594.20 45,276.83
Lease obligations - 3.36
Gross debt (B) - 3.36
Total capital (A+B} 44,594.20 45,280.19
Gross debt as above = 3.36
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 200.55 1.215.68
Met debt (C) {200.55) (1,212.32)
Net debt to equity ratio 0.00 (0.03)
(b) Dividends paid and proposed

The Company has not proposed and paid any dividend during the reporting penod.

43. Leases as a Lessor:-

The Company has classified lease of shed as a finance lease, because at the inception date, the present value of the lease to at least sub y all of
the fair value of the shed.

a) The following table sets out the ity lysis of lease receivab ing the undiscounted lease | to be d after the ing date:

Maturity analysis of lease receivable under Finance Lease As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Upto one year 518.58 503.48
One to two years 534.14 518.58
Two to three years 550.16 534.14
Three to four years 566.67 550.16
Four to five years 583.67 566.67
More than five years 8,178.76 8,762.91
Total undi i lease pay ivabl 10,931.98 11,435.94
Uneamed finance income 16.250.60 {6.765.27)
Net investment in lease 4,681.38 4,670.67

b Finance income on the net Invesiment in the lease recognized dunng the year is Rs. 503.96 lakhs (March 31, 2023

: Rs. 501.78 lakhs)

€} Maturity lysis of lease pay s under O ing Lease

Undi lease pay to be i on an annual basis As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Upto one year 641.85 636.15
One lo two years 64d4.41 559.58
Two to three years 647.04 562.14
Three to four years 600.58 564.77
Four to Five years 603.38 567.4
More than Five years 20.255.28 20,792.70 |
Total undi ted lease p bl 23,392.54 23,682.83

Leasing arrangements :
The leasehold land is leased lo tenants largely under operating leases with rentals

lessor is recognised in income on a siraightdine basis over the lease term. There are no lease pay

. The C

payable as per the contracts. Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a
pany has a robust process / due diligence with

respect to onboarding of customers including their credit worthiness, histarical experience amongst the wider Tata group etc. However, where considered necessary 1o reduce

credit risk, the Company may obtain bank guarantees for the term of the lease,

44, Net Debt Reconciliation :-
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

[Particutars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Current borrowings including accrued interest

Lease liabilities - 3.36
Net debt - 3.36
|Panllculars Liabilities from fi activities
Current borrowings Lease liabilities

Net debt as at 1 April 2022 7.003.35 22.46
Add/ less:

Payment of lease liability - (20.42)
Interest on lease liability - 132
Borrowing cost capitali 643.70 -
TDS deposited an behalf of the lender {64.37) -
Repayment of borrmw‘ng_s during the year (7,5682.68) =
Net debt as at 31 March 2023 - 3.36
Add/ less:

Payment of lease liability - (3.40)
Interast on lease liability - 0.04

Net debt as at 31 March 2024

\\"
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45. Income tax expense
(a) Income tax expense

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless stated otherwise

For the year ended For the year ended March
i March 31, 2024 Y31, 2023
{i) Current tax - -
Current tax on profits for the year & =
(ii) Deferred tax
Decrease/f (increase) in deferred tax assets {329.43) (98.61)
{Decrease)' increase in deferred tax liabilities 320,43 98.61

Total deferred tax | {benefit)

Income tax expensef (benefit)

|b) Reconciliation of tax exp and the

ing profit multiplied by tax rate:

For the year ended For the year ended March
Fariculacs March 31, 2024 31,2023
Loss before tax (681.43) (517.32)
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% (2022-23; 25.188%) {171.50) {130.20}
i) Exempted income net of expenses disallowed 1o earn such pted income - -
i} Tax impact on unrecogni carry fi of tax losses 171.50 130.20
i) Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income - -
iv) Others - -
Total | tax - -

{e) Unrecogmised carry-ferward amount of tax losses | credis

to Rs. 2 460.06 lakhs (March 31, 2023: 2.430 46 lakhs).
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46. Ratios
% Current . x "

Ratio Numerator Denominator Period Previous Period| % Variance Reason for variance

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 098 1.55 -37% Variation is largely on account of increase in
current liabilities due to receipt of advance
from customers of which major portion has
been granted as loan resulting in an increase
in current assets, part of the funds have been
utilised in the operations.

Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Sharenolder's Equity - - 0% The company has no debt in current as well

as in previous year.

Debt Service Coverage Earnings before interest, Debt Service - 1.47 -100% The company has no borrowings and interast

Ratio depraciation and taxes (Interest & Lease Payments + in current year. Al principal along with

(Met Profit after taxes + Non-cash |Principal Repayments) |interest has been paid off n the previous
operating expenses lika year.
depraciation and other
amortizations + Interast)
Return on Equity Ratio Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholder's Equity (0.02) (0.01) 24%
(Opening + Closing balance /
2)

Inventary urnover ratio Cost of goods sold or Sales Average Inventory - - 0% The company does not have any inventory,

hence not applicable

Trade Receivables turnover | Tolal Sales Avgerage Trade receivables 216,73 - 0% Variation is majorly due to Nil balance of

ratio {Opening + Closing balance / debtors in the previous year.
2}

Trade Payable turnover Total Purchases Average Trade Payables 9.41 41.63 T7% Variation is mainly on account of lower cost

ratio (Opening + Closing balance / of sales during the year compared to
2) previous year.

Net capital turnover ratic  |Net Sales Working Capital (7.00) 3.28 -315% Variation is on account of increase in current

(Total Sales - Sales Returns) {Current Assets - Current liability for advance received from customers
Liabilities ) and decrease in turnover.

Net profit ratio Net Profit after Tax Revenue from opertions (0.43) (0.23} 87% Variation is due to higher revenue in previous
(Total Revenue from year due to one-time income from grading
opertions - Returns) and levelling contract.

Return on Capital employed |Eamning before interest and taxes |Capital Employed (0.02) (0.01) 33% Variation is due to higher revenue in previous
(Net Worth + Intangible year due to one-time income from grading
Assets) and levelling contract.

Return on investment Gain on Investment Total Investment - - 0% The company has no investments in current

year as well as previous year, hence not
applicable.

47. Corp Social R

bility (CSR)

Based on the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act’) readwith Schedule VIl to the Act and the Companies (Corporate Sacial Responsibility) Rules, 2014, as amended,

Caorperate Sccial Responsibility are not applicable to the Company.
Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act

Balance excess spent as
at 1 April, 2023

Amount required to be spent
during the year

Amount spent during the
year

Balance excess spent as at
31 March 2024

1.24

1.24

The company was not required to make the contribution towards CSR expenes during the year. However, the company has made voluntary contribution of Rs. 1.24 lakhs.

48. The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company. further in case where the Company is the lessee, the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee.

49, Segment Reporting

(i) The Company's Board of Directors is identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM') for the Company. The Company is primarily engaged in the sub leasing of the Industrial Park.
The performance of the Company is assessed and reviewed by the CODM as a single operating segment and accordingly subleasing of land and its related ancilliary services is the only
operating segment. The Company is domiciled in India and its operations are alse primariliy based in India and accordingly disclosure of geographical information, if any are not warranted.

{ii) All non-current assets of the Company are located in India,

The customers which accounted for more than 10% of the revenues from exlernal customers, individually, during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as below:

Name of Customer For the year For the year
ended ended

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Tata Steel Limited 697.37 46487
Tata Consumer Products Limited 614.01 608.10
Mahadhan Agritech Limited (formerly Smartchem Tecnologies Limited) 191.82 1,111.69

50. The Company has assessed the impact of the Supreme Court Judgment in case of “Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (1) West
Bengal” and the related circular {Circular No. C-W1{33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation in relation to non-
exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of *basic wages” of the relevant employees for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees’ Provident
Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. In the assessment of the management (including cansidering a view from legal expert, inspections by PF authorities), the aforesaid matter is not
likely to have a significant impact and a i , no provision has been made in these Financial Statements.
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51. Additional Regul. y Infor quired by Schedule III
(a) Details of benami property held

Mo proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transachions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and Rules made
thereunder,

{b) Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender,

(c) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956,

(d) Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Restricton on number of layers) Rules, 2017, as applicable.

(e) Compliance with approved sct {s) of t:

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

(f) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign entity {Intermediary) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. direclly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Uttimate Beneficiary) or
b. provide any guarantee, secunty or the fike to or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiary

(ii) The Company has not received any fund from any persen or entity, including foreign entity (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entiies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiary) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiary

(g) Undisclosed Income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 that has not been recorded in the books of
accounts.

(h) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(i) Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use Assets) and Intangible Assets
The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use Assets) or Intangible Assets or both during the current or previous year,

(i) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of companies
There are no charges or salisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutery period.

52. The Company has done an assessment lo identify Core Investment Company (CIC) [ including CIC's in the Group | as per the necessary guidelines of Reserve Bank of India (including Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016). The Campanies identified as CIC's at Group level are Panatone Finvest Limited, Tata Industries Limited, Tata Sons Private Limited,
TMF Haldings Limited, Fincare Business Services Limited, T S Investments and Talace Private Limited.

53. Previous year's figure have been regrouped / rec ified wh ¥ to correspond with the current year's figures.

54, The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directars on Apr 25, 2024,

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Ri No.304026E/E-300008

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

ourab Bardhan %&rﬂ:h
Partner Chairman

Manikanta Naik

Managing Director
Membership No.: 131310 DIN: 02139568 DIN;: 06634998 ‘—‘—""
Place: Gurugram Place: Jamshedpur Place; Bhubaneswar ]

Date: April 25, 2024

Date: Aprd 25, 2024
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Manas Bandy: Swati Sheth
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bhubanedwar Place: Kolkata

Date: April 25, 2024

Date: April 25, 2024
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